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Date:  June 29, 2020 
 
TO:  All Prospective Proposers 
 
FROM: John Gilbreath 
 
SUBJECT: ADDENDUM NO.2-RFP # 20-0707, Design & Installation of the Public Safety 

Radio Signal BDA System for the following schools, WR Coile, BHL, Oglethorpe and Hilsman 
  
All respondents are hereby advised of the following amendment to the RFP #20-0707, document which is 
made an integral part of the bid document for the subject contract, prepared by the Clarke County School 
District. 
 
Respondents shall be required to acknowledge receipt of this addendum in their proposal response. 
Failure to acknowledge receipt of this addendum by the respondent may result in the rejection of their 
proposal. 
 
The addendum becomes a part of the original document and modifies as noted below: 
 

1. Provide each school a single price for a complete BDA System that provides the code 
compliant signal strength and coverage for the entire school. 

2. 11 page handout at preproposal meeting held at HilsmanMiddle school on 6-24-20. 
3. Who is the county’s roofing company that holds the warranty on the 4 roofs? Hilsman TPO 

roof-Northside Building Services, Coile and BHL TPO roof- C &W Roofing, Oglethorpe- D 
W Caldwell Inc. 

4. Does the system need to hook up to a fire alarm control panel and be monitored?  Yes but 
the Code allows for audible alarm signal at constantly attended location. 
a. If so, is the awarded company responsible for completing that connection and 

programming? Yes 
5. Is a low voltage permit required to perform the BDA/DAS installation? On past projects low 

voltage permits have not been required by ACC. 
6. What Motorola Portable model was used to take the RSSI readings depicted in the school 

drawings? Motorola model APX 6000 LI. 
7. Is the RFP requiring the use of Class A amplifiers for these four schools, or is it allowing the 

the integrators to choose either class A or class B for their solutions in response to the 
RFP?  Proposers may choose either a class A or class B amplifier for their solution. The 
amplifier must be sized to provide a complete BDA system for the entire school. 

8.  -What is the Voltage and Amp Rating of the Generator circuits available in the IDF and MDF 
rooms Identified on the site walks? Voltage is 110, amps is 20. IDFs and the MDFs at all 4 
schools have emergency power circuits ran to them. 

9. Can the Alarm requirements be combined into 1 Fire Alarm input? Or do you want a fire 
alarm input for each separate alarm (7)? (i.e. Loss of A/C, System battery Chrg Fail, donor 



malfunction, BDA Fail, Critical Fail, Loss of Comm to FACP or just one alarm Emergency 
Radio system fail). Alarm requirements can be combined into 1 Fire alarm input. 

10. The designer, Lead Installer must have both of the following?? FCC and Cert. The Code 
allows for an exception to the designer’s certifications.  

 
11. Per the RFP, the fire code section 510.4.2.3 will 2hr standby batteries be required if 

connected to Generator power? No. 
12. Per the RFP, the fire code section 510.4.2 refers to NFPA1221. NFPA1221 9.6.7.3 states 

critical areas shall have 99%coverage. Is this the Expectation of CCSD on this RFP? Yes. 
13. Has county reached out to AHj about the 2 hour cable fire rating requirement? Will this be 

required? No. Or will Plenum cable be allowed? Plenum rated cable is required. 
14. Can the county provide a required channel list? Yes, see attached. 
15. It was discussed on the site walk to propose two solutions a complete system covering all 

areas and one just to enhance specific areas give this will you be willing to extend the 
deadline? No. Proposed BDA solution to be for complete coverage for entire school. 

16. Is it acceptable to submit bid responses electronically via email? Proposals may be submitted 
by email. 

17. What version of the NFPA code is being enforced for these projects? 2018. 
18. Who is hiring the electrical and fire alarm contractors the schools or the Contactor? The BDA 

contractor. 
19. Are permits required for these jobs? If yes do sub-contractors, are subcontractors responsible 

for their own separate permits ? In the past ACC has not required permits for low voltage 
installations. If permits are required the subcontractors are responsible for their own permits. 

20. How do we apply for permits if we have to. Do we apply through the cities where the schools 
are located or through the county? Permits are obtained through Athens Clarke County 
(ACC). 

21. Are conduits required for coaxial cable and / or fiber optic cable installations or just free run? 
Conduits are not required but plenum rated cable is. Cables are to be installed in a neat and 
efficient manner and with the proper clearances to not have any interference from electrical 
circuits. 

22. Please confirm that the scope of these projects are to design and install only 800MHz Public 
Safety and does not include VHF/ or UHF. Correct- 800mhz Public Safety Signal system 
only. 

23. If the systems turn into fiber Systems based on the schools sizes, are there spare fiber optic 
cables already in place connecting all the IDF/ MDF/ELEC/ Data rooms available for us to 
use?  No. Or do we need to provide the fiber? You provide cable as needed for a complete 
system.BDA 

24. If fibers are available, are they single mode or multi-mode? Are the connectors SC/APC? 
25. In case we are providing the fiber cable, are there conduits connecting all the IDF/ 

MDF/ELEC/ Data rooms with available space that we can use? No. 
26. If yes, can you please send us these Conduit plan(s) /route(s) for each school? 
27. Are junction boxes required for couplers/splitters and the indoor antennas?  Junction boxes 

required if above hard inaccessible ceilings. If yes, do they have to be hinged? No. 
28. Do you have specification documents for these projects?  No. What are your preferred 

mounting applications for the equipment?  Amplifier to be wall mounted. Can we wall mount 
the equipment? 

29. Can we mount the antennas on the ceiling or do we have to install the above the ceiling? 
Above the ceiling. 

30. Are we allowed to do side penetration to bring the Coaxial cables from the Donor Antenna on 
the roof to the BDA provided that no space is available on the roof penetrations? We will 
review any proposed wall/roof penetrations for water tightness and maintenance.  

31. Are the IDF/ MDF/ELEC/ Data rooms 2-hour fire rated? Are the schools buildings 2-hour fire 
rated? See life safety plans for wall and room ratings. 

32. It was mentioned at the meeting the some of the schools may backup generators (couldn’t be 
confirmed); are the IDF/ MDF/ELEC/ Data rooms run on these backup generators as well or 
do you need us to include battery backups in our quote for the DAS equipment? All schools 
have generators which have emergency power circuits run to the MDF’s and IDF’s. 



33. Question: During the site walk meeting John Gilbreath described a numerical rating on the 
spot checks provided in the updated floor plans. The basic idea presented was that a 52 or 
less was considered "non-usable" service while a 77 or better was considered "good" service. 
Could you clarify the measurements used by this rating system and how is applies to RSSI 
and/or DAQ or any other common signal reading? Measurements were a numerical value of 
RSSI. 

34. Question: Was the above mentioned spot checking done on only down-link performance or 
did this metric also incorporate up-link performance as well?  Downlink only. 

 
35. Question: For the winning party and for pricing purposes, is it expected the spot check listings 

on the floor plan hand-outs are to be used to guide design or will we be required or allowed to 
perform a more thorough RF and DAQ survey? Spot checks were provided to indicate areas 
with low signal strength. I would recommend the necessary survey to design a BDA system 
which provides code compliant coverage for the entire school.  

 
36. Question: For coverage purposes, could you identify any "critical areas" of each facility that 

would require a mandatory 99% passing coverage versus the general and total facility areas 
that only will need 95% passing coverage. Code sectionNFPA1221 9.6.7.3 identifies the 99% 
coverage areas. 

 
37. Question: Please confirm each school has an emergency generator and the installed system 

will have access to emergency power given scope may need to include adding or extending a 
circuit to equipment location if a receptacle is not available. All schools have generators 
which have emergency power circuits run to the MDF’s and IDF’s. 

 
38. Question: Will closets or rooms for proposed equipment locations need to be fire rated, if so 

how long? Could the fire ratings of any rooms or closets in each facility be identified if this 
requirement is established? Room and wall ratings are indicated in the plans attached that 
were passed out at the preproposal meeting at Hilsman and emailed to each attendee. 

 
39. Question: What are the frequencies of the existing BDAs installed at each school for bus 

driver communication? VHF frequency 160 MHZ range. 
 
40. Question: At Hilsman there are two BDA systems installed, one in a red cabinet that would 

indicate a life-safety system, what is it and what are those frequencies? There is  Only 1 BDA 
system currently installed. VHF frequency 160 MHZ range. 

 
41. Question: At Oglethorpe Avenue there was a single BDA installed in a red cabinet that could 

indicate a life-safety system, is this just the bus communications as mentioned previously? 
Yes- VHF frequency 160 MHZ range 

 
42. Question: Could you provide the make and model of the alarms systems at each school that 

would need to be tied into the proposed system for monitoring? Hilsman- Edwards, WR 
Coile- Gamewell, BHL-Edwards, Oglethorpe-Fire Lite.  

 
43. Question: Will the AHJ approve of an audible signal to indicate any malfunction of the 

proposed system and where would that notification be monitored? Code allows for this 
alternate. 

 
44. Question: Will the CCSD or the AHJ require any 3rd party testing prior to final testing by the 

AHJ? No. 
 
45. Question: Could you elaborate on the uses of the optional frequencies provided in the RFP 

update and handed out at the site walk meeting? See attached sheet for additional 
frequencies requested by ACC. 

  
 

End of Addendum 2 
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